
Acknowledgement N um ber:34746198 L3O1O25 Date of filing : 3O-Oct-2025
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Current Year business loss, if any

Assessment
Year

2025-26
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Book Profit under MAT, where applicable

Adjusted Total lncome under AMT, where appljcable
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0

0
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Net tax payable

lnterest and Fee Payable

Total tax, interest and Fee payable

Taxes Paid

(+)Tax Payable /(-) Refundable (6-7)

10
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l7

tl

1:1

(-) 47,000

0

0

Accreted lncome as per section 115TD

AdditionalTax payable u/s 115TD

rnreresr payaore u/s 115 I E

Additional Tax and interest payable

Tax and interest paid

(+)Tax Payable /C) Refundable (12-13)

)
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Name of Assessee
Address

E-Mail
Status
Ward
PAN
Residential Status
Nature of Business

Method of Accounting
Filing Status
Last Year Retum Filed On
Last Year Retum Filed u/s
Bank Name

Tele

Mercantile

Original
06t11t2024
,I15BAA

Mob:9502200911

Co on of Tota

MODI & MODI REALTY HYDERABAD PRIVATE LIMITED

=1,8Jl3 

And 4, 2nd Floor,soham Mansion,MG
Koao,secunderabad,Hyderabad,TELANGANA,SO00O3
sambasivarao@modiproperties.com
Company(Domestic) Assessment year

AAN.M2416N YearEnded

Resident lncorporalion Date

REAL ESTATE AND RENTING SERVICES-Operating of reat estate ofself-owned buildinqs (residential and non_residenti"Uttio6il,rraae Name:Modi& Modi Reafty Hyderabad private Limitert

2025-2026
31.3.2025
15to1t2020

.7,18,455

YES BANK, , A,/C NO:9763700003430 ,Type: ,|FSC: YESBOOO0097,Prevalidaled : No, Nominate for refund : No

I lncome Section I 15BAA ax

hare )
Remuneration
lnterest
(Capital Bat 12436242t- )

Remuneration

lnterest
(Capital Bat 74661152t- )
From Firm Modi Rea Mi uda
LLP,PAN :ABCFM6774 G (e9.00% Share
'lemuneration

Ynterest
(Capital Bat 14Z08167t- )
From Firm Modi Rea Itv Pocharam LLp,PAN:ABlFMl 836H60.00% share
Remuneration

lnterest
(Profit Exempt u/s 1O(2A) 160554/- )
(Capital Bat 193434i3/- )
From Firm Modi Realty Vikaraba d LLP,PAN :ABlFM0553B
60.00% Share

Remuneration
lnterest
(Capital Bat s1946S9/- )
From Firm Modi and Modi
Constructions,PAN:

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

AAKFMT 214N (99.00 % Share )

Acknowledgement No.: 68't781921061124

lncome from Business or profession (Chapter lV D)

From Firm Modi

From Firm Modi Genome
Share

0

0

0

0

Remuneration



NAME OF ASSESSEE : MODI & MODI REALTY HYDERABAD PRIVATE LIMITED A.Y.2025-2026 PAN :

AANCM2416N Code:MMRHPL

0lnterest
(Profit Exempt u/s 10(2A) 2787721-)
(Capital Bal 906M7i- )

From Firm Modi Ventues, PAN:AAJFM0646D (99.00%

Share )

Remuneration

lnterest
(Profit Exempt u/s 10(2A) 169049/- )
(Capital Bal -16984851 )

From Firm Nilqiri Estates, PAN:AAHFN0766F (99.00%

Share )

Remuneration

lnterest
(Capital Bal -8140360/- )
From Firm Paramount Estates PAN:AAJFP4202C
99.00% Share

0

0

0

0

Remuneration
v lnterest

(Capital Bal 100553/- )

0

0

n

Profit as per Profit and Loss a/c

Add:

lnterest on TDS

Share of Loss from investment in partnership firm

Total

Less:

Share of profit from inveslment in partnership firm

Gross Total lncome
Gross Total lncome as -ve figure is not allowed in return
form.

Total lncome
Round off u/s 288 A
lncome Exempt u/s '10

MAT Provisions not apply on company due to applicability
of section I 15BAA

Tax Due @ 22o/. (Company applicable for Sec
115BAA)

T.D.S./T.C.S

-59,84,818

1,891

77,33158,

12 859

-1,05,596

6, 12,859

-7,18,455

0

0

0

6,08,375

0

Refundable (Round off u/s 2888)
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NAME OF ASSESSEE : MODI & MODI REALW HYDERABAD PRIVATE LIMITED A.Y.2025-2026 PAN :

AANCM2416N Code:MMRHPL

T.D.S./ T.G.S. From
Non-Salary(as per Annexure)

Details of Exempt lncome

47,000

Amount
160554

278772

169049

608375

Comparision of lncome if Company does not Opts for Section 115BAA/115BAB (Tax
@25%l
l.Total inmme as per Section 115BA Jl15BAB
2. Ad.iustments according to section 1'l5BAA,/115BAB
(i) Deduc.tion undef Ch VIA as per Provisions of Section

\7 ll5BAA/ll5BAB

Gross Total lncome as per Section ll5BAA/1l5BAB
(ii) Allowed Deductions (which yyere disallowed under secton l l5BAA
/ r15BAB)
No Oeduclion exists
(iii) Allowed Brought Forward Loss (which were disallowed under
secton tlsBAA / 115BAB)
NA

3. Gross Total lncome (l-2)
Deduction under Chapter VIA

Total lncome afrer Adiustments under section 1l5BAA/il5BAB

Statement of Current Year Loss Adiuslment

'l Profit from Firm Modi Realty Pocharam LLP
2 Profit from Firm Modi and Modi Constructions
3 Profit from Firm Modi Ventues

Total
Due Date for filing of Retum October 31 , 2025

0

0

0

0

0
n

0

House Property
Loss of the

Current Year Set
off

Business Loss of
the Current Year

Set off

Olher Sources
Loss of the

Current Year Sel
oll

Current Year lncome
Remaining after Set

off

.-. Loss to be adjusted

House Property

Business

Speculation Business

Short term Capital Gain

Long term Capital Gain

Other Sources

Total Loss Set off
Loss Remaining after
set ofi

718455

NILNIL
NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL 718/t55 NIL

Statement of Business losses BrouqhUCarried Forward
Assessment Year Brought Forward Disallowed as per Set off

t15BAA'115BAB/1
't5BAC/'rsBAD

Carried
Forward

718455Current Year Loss

Total 0 00

S.No. Particulars

0

Head/Source of lncome Curent Year
lncome

718455
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NAME OF ASSE
AANCM2416N

Bank Account

":*
Bank Address

SECUNDRABAD

sSEE: MoDl & MoDr REALry HYDERABAD pRrvATE LrMrrED A.y.2025-2026 pAN
Code :MMRHPL

Detail

1 YES BANK

2 YES BANK LTD

refund
No No

Yes Yes

(Primary)

Cunent

lncome from lnvestment
S.N lnve. Dats Dercription
o

lnstrumcnt
l{o./lssued

Rate lnv.Amount lnterqst Hatudty
Date

Maturity
By Amount1 18110t2024 FDR 0.00 0.00 0.oo 18t1012024 0.00

Total 0

Details of T.D.S. on AS lmDo rt Date:06 Oct 2025)
S.No Name of the Oeductor Tax deduction

A,/C No. of the
deductor

All|ount
Paid/credited

Total Tax
deduc{ed

Amount out of (5)
claimed fo. this year

df
AmUcbim
i,| Hand of

tpouseModi Prcprrtica Privatr Limitcd

TOTAL

AABCM.+761E 0 1802?O 47000 133270

0 1802?0 47000 133270

Head wise Summary on lncome and TDS thereon
Head Section Amount

Paid/Credited As
per 26A5

As per
Computation

Location of lncome for
Gomparison

TDS

Business 194rA 0 5312859 (Total of Sales/ Gross
receipts of buslness and
Gross receipts from
Profession in Trading
Account + Total of other
income ) in profit & Loss
Arlc:5312859

5312859Total

47000

of
s.No

ma
INFORI'ATION CATEGORY DER]VED

vALUE(Rs.)
As Per Computation Oifforence

No Record Found

Busineqs receipts
0

Trading Account->Sales/
Gro6s receipts of business
Profit and Loss
Account->Olher income

4700000

612859

53t 2t59 5312859

Signature
(Gaurang jayantital modi)

For MOD| & MOD| REALW HYDERABAD
PRIVATE LIMITEDCompuTax : MMRHPL tMODI & MODI REALry HYDERABAD PRIVATE LIMITE Dl
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Account No IFSC Code Type Prevalidated Nomlnatefor

9763700003430 YESB000009
7

00s763700003430 YESBOoooog
7

,|
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NAME oF ASSESSEE : MoDl &MoDt REALry HYDERABAD pRtvATE LtMtrED A.y.2025-2026 pAN:
AANCM2416N Code:MMRHPL
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ASAcnRwALaCo.
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

3-3-116/4, Kachiguda
Hyderabad - 500 027
Telangana, lndia
Tel: +91 40 4018 3449

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad
Private Limited ("the company") which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and
the statement of profit & loss, for the year ended March 31,2025, and cash flow statement for
the year ended March 31,2025 and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
"fi nancial statements").

In our opinion, and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the companies Act, 2013
("Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generalry accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at
March 3 I , 2025 - and, of its profit/ loss and its cash flows for the year ended Mar.ch 3r . 2025.

Basis for Opinion

we have conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (sAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act.2013. our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of this report. we are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act,2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the code of Ethics. we believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company.s annual report, but
does not include the financjal statements and our auditors, report thereon.

\
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ASAcnRwALaCo.
Chartered Accountants

our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsib ity is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materia y misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') with respect to the preparation ofthese financial statements thatgive a true and fair view of the rrnancial position, frnanciar performance of the company in
accordance with the accounting principres generally accepted in India, includi,g the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, as applicable.

This responsibility also includes maintenance ofadequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregurarities, serection and application of appropriate accounting
policies,making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 1iee
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financiar statements, management is responsible for assessing the company,s
abiliiy to continue as a going concem, discrosing, as appricable, matters related-to going concem
and using the going concem basis of accounting urless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company,s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility

our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a wholeare free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor,sreport that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high revel of assurance, but is not aguarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with sAs will always detect a materialmisstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

la
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Chartered Accountants

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, We exercise professional judgement and mailtain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe hnancial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

r Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose ofexpressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company,s Intemal contr.ols.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company,s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material gncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifi our opinion. our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor,s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the discrosures, and whether the financiar statements represent the underrying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

we have communicated with those charged witi govemance regarding, among other matters, theplanned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incruding any significantdeficiencies in intemal control that we have identified during our audit.

we have also provided those charged with govemance with a statement that we have compriedwith relevant ethicar requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them alrrelationships and other matters that mry ."uinubly u. ,n""grr, to bear on our independence. andwhere applicable, related safeguards. >!r! !v uwur urr .,ur ,ruepsnoen

V
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ASAanRwALaCo.
Chartered Accountants

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020, issued by the central
Govemrnent of India in terms of sub section (1 1) of the companies Act, 2013, we give in
"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specifred in the paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe order.
to the extent applicable.

2

A) As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

b)

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanation which to best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose ofour audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from examination ofthose books.

The Balance Sheet and the statement of profit and Loss dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

I, our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements compry with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, as applicable.

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 0r
April 2025, taken on record, none of the director is disqualified as on 31 March
2025. from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls. the
Ministry of corporate Affairs vide its circular no G.S.R 5g3(E) dated l3rh June
2017 exempts companies having turnover ofless than Rs. 50 crores and aggregate
borrowings fiom banks and other financial institutions of less than Rs. 25 crores
from reporting the same. Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad private Limited, being
a company satisfying the aforementioned conditions is therefore exempted frori
the above reporting requirements.

a)

c)

d)

e)

0
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ASAcnRwALaCo.
Chartered Accountants

B) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor,s Report in accordancewith Rule 11 0f the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rures, 2014, i, our opinion and tobest of information and according to the explanation given to us:a) The company does not have any pending Iitigations which would impact itsfinancial position.

b) The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c) There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and protection Fund by the Company.

d)

i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other persons or entities. including fbreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall. whether.

' directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (,,Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or

' provide any guarantee, security, or the rike to or on beharf of the
Ultimate Benefi ciaries.

ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belie{ no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (,,Funding parlies,,), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether,

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Benefrciaries,,) or
provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the
Ultimate Benefi ciaries.

Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate inthe circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to

Charlered
Accountanls
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ASAcnRUrALaCo.
Chartered Accountants

believe that the representations under subclause (d)(i) and (d)(ii) contain any
material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company and thus,

Section 123 ofthe Act is not applicable to the Company during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used

accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the year
ended 3l st March, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated thoughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software systems. Further. during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with, and

the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements [or record retenlion.

C) The Company being a private limited company, the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as

amended, in respect of whether the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act, is not
applicable.

ForASAganval&Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 0149875)

0

U"/
Ashish Agarwal
Partner
M. No.222861

UDIN: &5&aaa6l-BM00cn X56a'1

PIace: Hyderabad

Date:&l SeftefibQh aoaS
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred in 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements, section ofour report to the
Members of Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad private Limited of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books ofaccount and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best ofour
knowledge and belief, we state that:

i) In respect ofCompany,s propeffy, plant and equipment

ASAcnRwAL&Co.
Chartered Accountants

a)

b)

a)

b)

ii)

The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment or intangible assets.
Accordingly, reporting under clause l(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31,2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act. lggg (as amended in 2016) and rures made
thereunder.

The Company's inventory comprises of Villas which were physically verified during
the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according tJ
the information and expranations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the
company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories when compared with books ofaccount.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has noborrowings from banks or financiar institutions on the basis of security of currentassets' Accordingry, reporting under crause (ii)(b) of the order is not appricable tothe Company.

Charlered
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iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

ASAcnRwALaCo.
Chartered Accountants

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination ofthe records ofthe company, the company has not provided any guarantee
or security, or granted any loans or advances in the natue ofloans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, reporting to that extent is not applicable to the Company.

a) The investments made and the terms and conditions of investments, made during the
year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company,s interest.

b) According to the information and explanation provided by the management and basis
our review, the company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of
loans to any other entity during the year. Therefore, reporting under this sub-clauses
(c) to (f) ofclause (iii) of this Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and Section 196 ofthe Act, with respect to
the loans given.

According to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank oflndia, and provisions of Section 73 to 76 ofthe Act, any other relevant provisions
of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance ofcost records
has not been specified by the centrar Government under sub-section (1) of section r4g of
the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) is not applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Income Tax and other materiar statuiory dues appricable to it with the
appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in few cases.

Page 8 ofI2
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viii)

i*)

A S AceRwAL e. Co.
Chartered Accountants

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2025, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

c) There are no dues for Income Tax and other material statutory dues as on March 31,
2025, ol account of disputes.

Based on the representations given by management, the company's operations did not give
rise to any dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Goods and
Service Tax, Sales Tax, Excise Duty, Customs Duty and Value Added Tax.

The company has not surendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

") According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
availed any loans from financial institutions, banks and goverrunent. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company to this
extent. However. the company has availed an unsecured loan from its Associate
company repayable on demand wilh an interest chargable @ 7.25% per annum and
the company has not defaulted in repaying the same. (Refer Note 5 to the financial
statements).

b) The company has not been declared wiful defaulter by any bank or linancial
insitution or government or any government authoritv.

c) According to the information and explanations giren to us, the Company has not
obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is noiapilicable.d) According to the information and expranations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that the there are no
funds which are raised on shorl_term basis.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate company, the.efore has not taken fiurds fromany entity or person on account of or to meet the obrigations of its subsidiaries.
associates or joint ventures.

f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the predge of securities he* inits subsidiaries or associate company.

*
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x)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

ASAcnR\yALaCo.
Chartered Accountants

a) Based on examination ofthe books and records ofthe company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality
outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fiaud by the company and on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the course ofthe audit.

b) Accordingly, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the companies Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules,2014 with the central Govemment, during the year and upto the
date ofthis report.

c) As represented to us by the management. there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year

The company is not a Nidhi company, hence Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicabre to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
is in compliance with 1gg of the companies Act, 2013, where appricable, fbr a
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
appropriately disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the appricable
accounting standards. The company is a private company and hence the provisions of
section 177 ofthe Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

As per section 138 ofthe Act, the company is not required to have an internal audit system.Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

',1Y4

/ charlered
Accountanls
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a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans. Accordingly clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

V



xv)

xvi)

xvii)

\-.xviii)

xix)

ASAcnRurALaCo.
Chartered Accountants

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Dtectors or
persons connected to its directors and thus provisions of section 1g2 ofthe companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable.

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45JA of the Reserve
Bank oflndia Act,1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) is not applicable to
the Company.

b) The company is not required to be registered under Section 45JA of the Reserve
Bank oflndia Act,1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) ofthe order is not applicable.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined under the
Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(c) is not applicable to the Company.

d) The Group does not have any core investment company as pan of the group and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has incurred cash losses ofRs. 43.43 Lakhs during the currenr audit period and Rs. it.l3
Lakhs in the previous audit period.

There not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingry
reporting under clause (xviii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

on the basis of the frnanciar ratios, ageing and expected dates of rearization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financiar
statements and our knowledge ofthe Board of Directors and management pians and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to berieve that any material un.".,uin,y exists as on the date of theaudit report that company is not capable of meeting its riabilities existing at the date ofbalance sheet as and when they falr due within a perild ofone year fiom the balance sheetdate' we' however, state that this is not ,, u.lrrur.. as to the future viability of thecompany' we further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of theaudit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
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ASAcnRwALaCo.
Chartered Accountants

due within a period of one period from the balance sheet date, w l get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due..

xx) Section 135 of the companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForASAgarwal&Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 014987S)

\r,,
Ashish Agarwal
Partner
M. No.222861
UDIN: &5&&9 861BMU0tr)x56&1

Place: Hyderabad

Date:&g Seteml,^ AoAs

Chatteled

*
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ASAcnnuynlaCo. 3-3-116/A, Kachiguda
Hyderabad - 500 027
Telangana, lndia
Tel: +91 40 4018 3449

Chartered Accountants

Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limited

Attention: Soham Satish Modi

5-4-187/3 & 4 Soham Mansion, M.G. Road

Secunderabad, Hyderabad TG 500003.

Dear Sir

This engagement letter together with the attached general terms and conditions for Assurance
Engagements (collectively this'A$eement') confimls the terms and conditions upon wliich A S
Agarwal & Co ('ASA') has been engaged to perform the following services for Modi & Modi
Realt-v Hyderabad Private Limited (hereinafter refened to as 'Cornpany').

a. Statutory audit ofthe financial statemenls ofthe Company as at March 31,2025, comprising
the balance sheet as al March 31, 2025,ihe related slatement of profit and loss and summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information thereon for the period

ended March 31,2025 as required by the Companies Act 2013.

2. Should conditions not now anticipated preclude us from completing our audit and issuing a report
as contemplated by this agreement, we will advise you and those charged with governance or the
Board ofDirectors ofthe Company promptly and take such action as we deem appropriate.

Our Responsibilities and Limitations

3. In the context of paragraph I above, the objective of our audit is to express an opinion whether
the financial stalements give a true and fail view ofthe financial position and results of operations
ofthe Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India.

We will conduct the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India
('AAAS') as promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards
requirc that we comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. There are inherent limitations in the audit
process, including, for example, the use of judgment and selective testing of data and the
possibility that collusion or forgery may preclude the detection of material effor, fraud or illegal
acts. Accordingly, there is some risk that a material misstatement ofthe financial statements may
remain undetected. Also, an audit is not designed to detect fraud or eror that is immaterial to the
financial statements.

4

j As part ofour audit, we will consider, solely for the purpose ofplanning our audit and determining
the nature, timing, and extent of our audit procedures, the company's internal control over
financial reporting.

In accordance with GAAS- we will communicate certain matters related to the conduct and results
of the audit to those charged with governance or the Board of Directors of the company. Such
matters include:

our reasonabiliN under GAAS for forminc and expressine an opinion on the financial
staternglrs rltar'iEse oreprlEparc{riDrnE'aganerwithd*r<xasdiro(dtile.etnr}s.qriithr...1,

a.

Page I of6
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Chartered Accountants

govemance or the Board of Directors of the Company and that such audil does not relieve
management and those charged with governance oftheir responsibilities.

Significant findings from the audit which include: l. Our view about the significant qualitative
aspects of the Company's accounting practices, including accounting policies, accounting
estimates, and financial statement disclosures. 2. Significant difficulties if any, encountered

during the audit. 3. Uncoffecled misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial.4.
Disagreement with management, if any. 5. Other matters if any, arising from the audit that are,

in our professional judgment significant and relevant to those charged with governance or the
Board ofDirectors of the Colnpany regarding the oversight of tlle financial reporting process,

including significant matters in comection with the company's related parties.

Written representations requested from management and significant matters, ii any, arising
from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence, with management.

If we determine that there is evidence that fraud or possible non-compliance with laws and

regulations may have occurred, we will bring such matters to the attention ofthe appropriate level
ofmanagement, unless they are clearly inconsequential.

Management's R€sponsibilities and Representations

b

7

8

c

a.

b

c.

d

e

i.

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and where appropriate those charged
with governance or the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company, acknowledge and understand thal they
have responsibility:

For the preparation and the fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ('GAAP').

For the design, implementation and maintenance of such internal conhols as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation ofthe financial statements.

Laying down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial conlrols are adequate and were operating effectively

To provide us with: l. Unrestricted access, on a timely basis, to all records, documentation and
other information that management is aware that is relevant to the preparation ofthe financial
stalements such as records, documentation and other matters. 2. Additional information that
we may request from management for the purpose of the audit, and 3. unrestricted access to
persons within the company from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

For identiling and ensuring that the company complies with laws and regulations as
applicable to its activities.

For making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the cornpany as at the end of the financial year and of the
profit or loss ofthe Company for the period.

Pase 2 of 6



ASAcnnunnlaCo.
Chartered Accountants

9

Management's failure to provide us with the information referred to above or access to persons
within the Company may cause us to delay our report, modif, our procedures, or even terminate
our engagement.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this agreement, you agree that we may, from time to time,
engage or use the services of any experts or require to obtain their opinion, on any matter which
we, in our reasonable understanding and/ or professionaljudgment determine to be essential for
the purposes ofrendering the services described herein.

Management is also responsible for adjusting the financial statements to colect misstatements
identified by us and for affirming to us in its representation letter that they berieve the effects of
unrecorded misstatements are immateriar, individua y and in aggregate, to the financial
statements as a whole.

Management is also responsibre for apprising us of ar alregations involving financiar
improprieties received by the management or those charged wilh governance or the Board of
Directors and providing us full access to these alegations and any internal investigations of them,
on a timely basis. Ifthe company limits the information otherwise avairabre to us, the company
will immediately inform us ofthe fact that certain information is being withheld from us. Any
such withholding of information could be considered a restriction on rhe scope of the audit and
may pfevent us fi'om opining on the company's financial statements; alter the form of report we
may give on such financial statements or othe^vise effect our ability to continue as the company,s
independent auditors.

we will make specific inquiries of management about the representations contained in the
financial statements. At the concrusion of the engagement, we wilr also obtain written
representations from management about these matters, and that management; l. Has fulfilled its
responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Indian GAAP and thal all transactions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial
statements. 2. Has provided us with all relevant information and access as contemplaled in this
agreement. The Company understands the importance of the said written management
representations for an effective audit and review, and hence the company agrees to release us and
i1s personnel from any liability and costs related to Services attributable to any misrepresentations
by management.

11.

12
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Chartereci Accountants

Fees expenses and billing arrangements

We estimate that our fee for the Services described in Paragraph I of this letter will be Rs.63,000 and the
payment ofthe same will be made in the manner approved by the Board of Direc1o6. In addition. the
Company shall reimburse all direct expensesr i.e. Out ofPocket Expenses ('OPE') incurred in connection
with the performance ofthe Services and applicable taxes.

Our invoices will be payable upon presentation.

Ifthe Company intends to publish or otherwise reproduce the financial statements or other reports together
with our report or otherwise make reference to our firm in a document that contains other information, the
Company shall provide us with copies of the printer's proof of its annual report prior to publication or.

filing for our review. We will review the document for consistency between the annual financial statements
and other information contained in the document, and to determine if the financial statements and our
report thereon have been accurately reproduced. If we identify any errors or inconsistencies that may affect
the financial statements, we will advise the managemenl as appropriate.

Yours sincerelv

N,*
Ashish Agarwal

Partner

For and on behalfofA S Aganval & Co.

I hereby confirm
Annexure 1.

my agreement to the terms and the enclosed terms ofbusiness in

-! sEUJI{ffElso id

t0l
S

Nu,. S. ohsr^ Shsh .cnod; D.;..".-**.Position

For and on behalf of Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad private Limited

I Dire€t exp€nses include reasonable and customary ou'of-pocket expenses such as travel, meals. accommodations- and other expensessp€cificallyrela&dtothis,gcsrr

Page .l of6

Dated.
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Annexure 1- General terms and conditions

Your res ibilities

l. You shall be responsible for your personnel's compliance with your obligations under this
Agreement.

Our renorts

2. You may not rely on any draft report.

Limitations

3. You (and any others for whom Services are provided) may not recover from us, in contract or tort,
under statute or otherwise, any amount with respect to loss of profit, data or goodwill, or any other
consequential, incidental, indirect, punitive or special damages in connection with claims arising out
ofthis Agreement or otherwise relating to the Services, whether or not the likelihood of such loss or
damage was contemplated.

4. You (and any others for whom Services are provided) may not recover from us, in contract or tort,
under statute or otherwise, aggregate damages in excess ofthe fees actually paid for the Services that
directly caused the loss in connection with claims arising out ofthis Agreement or otherwise relating
to the Services.

5. You shall rnake any claim relating to the Services or otherwise under this Agreement no later than l2
months ofdiscovery ofthe cause ofaction in relation to such claim.

Indemnitv

6. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law and professional regulations, you shall indernnify
us and its personnel against all claims by third parties and resulting liabilities, losses, damages, costs
and expenses arising out of or relating to the Services. On behalf of yourself and your affiliates, you
release us from all claims and causes of action and cases of action to the extent such claims result
from or arise out ofany misrepresentation or fraudulent act or omission by you, your employees.

Confidentialitv

7. We will follow professional standards of confidentiality and will treat information related to you
disclosed 1o us by you or on your behalf as set forth in the Code ofEthics ofthe Institute of Chartered
Accountants oflndia.

8. You agree that, in accordance with the Statement on Peer Review issued by the Institute ofChartered
Accountants oflndia or as may be required or mandated by any other regulator, our services may be
subject to a review to be conducted by an Independent reviewer who can inspect. examine or take
abstract of our work papers including those provided by you. Further, if a regulatory or government
authority responsible for auditor oversight asks or orders us to produce information or documents in
our files relating to your affairs, including our work papers, we may provide these material to it.
Except where prohibited by law, we will advise you ofthe request or order.

Page 5 of6
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Chartered Accountants

9. This Agreement applies to all Services performed at any time (including before the date of this
Agreement).

10. This Agreement shall terminate on the completion ofthe Services. Either ofus may terminate it, or
any particulal Services, earlier upon fifteen days' prior written notice to the other. In addition, we
may terminate this Agreement, or any particular Services, immediately upon written notice to you if
we reasonably determine that we car no longer provide the Services in accordance with applicable
Iaw or professional obligations.

I l. You shall pay us for all work-in-progress, Services already performed- and expenses incured by us
up to and including the effective date of the termination of this Agreement. Payment is due within
30 days following receipt ofour invoice for these amounts.

lliscella neous

12. Any dispute relating to this Agreement or the Services shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction
ofthe courts at Hyderabad, to which each ofus agrees to submit for these purposes.

13. You represent that the person signing this Agreemenl on your behalf is expressly authorized to
execute it and 1o bind you and any ofyour affiliates or others for whom Services are performed to its
terms.

14. If any provision of this A$eemenr (in whole or part) is held to be illegal, invalid or otherwise
unenforceable, the other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

15. Neither of us may use or reference the other's name. logos or tlademarks without its prior written
consent, provided that we may use your name publicly to identi! you as a client in connection with
specific Services or otherwise.

Page 6 of 6



5-4- 187/3&4, II floor,
MG Road, Secunderabad -

MODI & MODI REALTy HyDERABAD pVT LTD 500 003.phone: +el_40_
66335551

Date: B9 Ser*.effbe\ AIAS-

A S Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

3-3-l l6l.{, Kachiguda,

Hyderabad - 500027

Dear Ashish.

Sub: Statutory audit of Modi & Modi Realty Hyclerabad Private Linrited fbr thc year.enrl,:cl 3l March
2025

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit ofthe financial staternents oflvrodi
& Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limitetr (hereinafter refered to as ..corlpany,,) for the year
ended .l I March 2025 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to rvhether the fi nancia I statements
give a true and fair vielv of the tlnancial position of company for.thc ycar enti..C jl \4ar.ch l025and
the results of its operations and cash florvs fbr the l,ear.errded 3l March 2025.

We confifln to the best of our knowledge and belief the follorving representatiols are givel to you ir)
connection with your audit orthe co,rpany's financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2025.

We acknolvledge our responsibility for preparation of the financial statements iu accordaflce witlr
accounting plinciples gerlerally accepted in lndia, inclLrding the Accounring Stantlarcls sprcillcd under.
Sectio, 133 ofthe Act, read rvith t(ule 7 o1'thc Cornpanies (AccoLrnts; l(Lrrcs.20i4.

We coDfirtn that a detailed assesslnent ofthe reporting lequirernents under the Schedule Ill has been
made by the Management and appropliate disclosures/ presentalion, as r.equircd under the Schedule III,
have been made in the financial staternents.

Classificntion of items in the Balartce Slreet as current ancl non-crillc.nt is on thr. busis s;;lcilied in thc
Gener-al lnstructions for Preparation ol.Balauce Sheet in the Schctltrlc IIL

Due consideration has been giveu to llte requirements ofthe AccoLruting Starrdards arrd i.he requirernents
of the statutory provisions.

In connection rvith your audit rve confirm, to tlrc best of our knorvledge and belief, the foflowing
representations made to you durilrg your audit:

'fhere have been no irregularitics invorving nranagernert or errpro),cus lrrro hlr.c si_qlificant
role in the accou[ting:rnd interlar contror systems or that courd have a r]lateriar eriect on the
tinancial statements. we also state that the internal conrrol procedules ar.e cornnrelsumte with
the size ofthe company and nature ofthe business. No major rveakness in the inlenral control
rvas noliced during the given 1,ear.

lltc itccoijn t i g tc,jords ili
ets olthe Comp:rri and for
dap ppropnate

We acknorvledge oLr; rcsponsibilily.. of nraintcnalcc of. aJeqLr
accordance vrith the provisions of tlre Act i.or safeguar.ding the nss
preventiug and detecting frauds and other iregLrlarities; seliction an
accounting policies; nraking judgnre[ts and estilnates that are rea

ola
dent; aud
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MODI & MODI REALTy HyDERABAD pVT LTD 500 003.phone: +et_40-
66335551

design, implementation and tnaintenance of adequate intertral financial controls. tllat were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

we have made available to you all books of accounts and supporting documentation and all
minutes ofmeetings ofshareholders and the board ofdirectors.

All transactions have beel recorded in the accounting records and are reflectecl in the financial
statements-

The company is taking daily backup of its books ofaccounts on a server located in India.

All known, actual, or possible non-compliance with laws and regulatio,s, together with the
actual or contingent consequences, which may arise there from, the ef-fects ofrvhich should be
considered when preparing financial statements, have been disclosed to voLr and have been
appropriately dealt with by us in the financial statements.

we represent and confirm that we have complied with the provisions ofcornpanies Act,2013,
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and other material laws and regulations applicable
lo the Company.

As the cornpany is a private company, section I97 of the Act related to tlre nra,agerial
remuneration is not applicable to us.

The effects of uncorrected misstatements, if any, are immaterial, both individuallv and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.

The company has complied with all aspects ofcortractual agreenrents that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-conr pliance. Tlrer.e hrs lrcen no non-
compliance with requircntents ofregulatory authorities tlrat could have a rnaterial efl-ect on the
financial statements in the event of non-compliauce.

The accounting policies which are material or critical in determining the results ofoperations
for the given year or financial position are set out in the financial statements and are consistent
with those adopted in the financial statements for the previous year. The financial statements
are prepared on accrual basis.

The results for the given year were not materialy afrected by the fb owing, except as disclosed
in the accounts:

a. Transactions ofa nature not usually undertaken by the Company;

b. Circumstances ofan exceptional nature or non-recur.ring nature:

c. Changes in accounting policies;

d. Charges or credits relating to prior period.

We con
parties.

firm the completeness ofthe infonnation provided regarding the ide n ofrelated
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5-4- I 87/3&4, II floor,
MG Road, Secunderabad -
500 003.Phone: +91-40-
66335551

we have provided arr informatio, and expranations, rvritten ancr/ or otrrer,,vise, *tich are
necessary for the purpose ofaudit and the effect ofthe same on trre financiar statements.

The company does not have any branch offices as defined under section 2(14) of the

3:,TT:1,1r013 
for the year ended 3l March,2024 and does not require any compliance

rn retatton to the sanle-

The cornpany did ,ot have any long-term contracts inclucling derivative co*tfacts f.or which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

No Directors ofthe company are disquarified from being appointed as directors under section
164(2) of the Companies Act,2013 as at 3l March 20251

There are no contributions nrade to any political party during the given year.

In the opinion ofthe manage,re,t, ar the books ofaccounts and other records as reqLrired a,d
as are adequate for the operations ofthe Contpany has been rnaintained.

In the opinion of the management, the financial statements confirm to a, the applicabreaccounting standards prescribed under section 133.

The Company does not have any significant ancl material pencling litigations.

The net book varues at rvhich fixed assets are stated in the barance sheet ar.e ar.rived at:

a' after taking into account a[ capitar expenditure o, additions thereto, but no expenditureproperly chargeable to revenue;
b' after eliminating the cost and accumurated depreciation relating to items sord,

discarded, dernol ished or destroyed;
c' after providing depreciation as p'escribed irr Schedure Ir to the conrpanies Act,20r3

on fixed assets during the period;

Depreciation on assets was provided over their estirnated usefur life using straight rine method
and, in the manner specified under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

There have been no events subsequent to year_end r.vhich require ad-justment ofor disclosurein the financial statenrents or ,otes trrereto excepting those criscrosetr in the N.tcs to the
financial statements

has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtu during the

The identification of, and balances and transactions with, related parties have bee, properly
recorded and, when appropriate, adequately disclosed in the financial .tot",r"nt, und irorid"dfor your perusal i, Initiar Representation Letter. we confirm that trlere are no onrissions or
additions with respect to related parties detaiis as rnentio,ed in the afbrenrentioned letter

we have no plans or intentions that rnay materia y arter the carrying value or crassification of
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.
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The Company does not have any transactions with companies strLtck off.

No order has been passed by the Cornpany Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank oflndia or any court or any tribunal against the Company.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowecr funcls or share
premium or any other sources or kind offunds) by the Company to or ir any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), rvith the under.standing, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Interntediary shall, whether,:

' directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Company (..Ultimate Beneficiaries,,) or

' provide any guarantee, security o[ the like to or on behalfofthe Ultinrate Bcneficiaries.

No funds have been received by the compa*y from any persons or entities, incruding foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or oiherwis-e,
that the Compauy shall, whether,:

' directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on beharfofthe Fundi,g party ("urtimate Beneficiarics,') or.

' provide any guarantee, security or the like to or ou behalfofthe Ultintate Belleficiaries.

For the purpose ofreporting with respect to trre accounting softrvare used by trre co,rpany for
maintaining its books of account, we hereby confirm that to the best of our knowledge and
belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose ofapp.opiiatery
inforrning ourselves:

' we are responsible for establishing and maintainine acleqLrate cortr.ols fbr icrentifrirrg,
maintaining, controlling, and ,ronitoring of audit tr.ails as per the r.equirenents on a
consistent basis.

' we have performed an evaluation and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
company's procedures for complying to the requirements prescribed for audit trails.

we have.ot used the procedures pe,formed by you during the aLrcrit as 1;arr ofthe basis fbr
our assessment ofthe efflectiveness ofaudit trails ofaccounting soltware.

Based on the evaluation carried out, we conclude tliat the company uses accounting
software for maintaini,g its books ofaccount which has a feature of recording audit trail
of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of
account alolg with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the a,dit trair
cannot be disabled and the audit trail been preservecl by the companl,as lrcr thc statutory
requirenrents [or record retentio .

As part of rnanagement's evaluation, about disclosing to you all such deficiencies that we
believe to be sig,ificant deficiencies or would lead to material weaknesses in intemal
financial controls, we confirm that there are no material deficiencies identified.

There are no changes in the accounting software front 3l March 202
representation letter

le of th is



MODI & MODI REALTY HYDERABAD PVT LTD

5-4-I87/3&4, floor,
MG Road, Secunderabad -
500 003.Phone: +91-40-
66335551

ny loans or. advances
liability par.tnerships

There were no instances of fraud resulting ilr a material n]isstatement to the cornpany,sfinanciar stateme,ts is identified whire'eviewing u,ra t..tinl tir. sampres rerated to trredisablement ofaudit trail facility ofthe accountin! .oft*ur.. 
"

As required under section 143 (1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 we confirm that:
a) The Company has not made any loans and advances on the basis ofsecurity.
b) There are no transactions represented merery by book entr-ies by the Company u,rrich areprejudicial to the interests ofthe Company.

c) company does not have any shares, debentures or securities which have been sord at a priceless than that at which they were purchased.

d) The Company has not made any loans and advances which are sholn as deposits.

e) There are no personal expenses charged to the revenue account except as permittedcontractually.

f1 The Company has not made any a,otment ofshares for cash consideration during the year.

with respect to your Report unde'trre Comparries (Autritor,s Report) oraer 2020. *e confirrn to thebest of our knowredge and havi,g nade appropriate enquiries of other o,'ficiars of thc corrpany, trrefollowing representations:

i. The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, reporting underclause l(a), (b), (c) and (d) ofthe order is not applicable to the company.

. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pendins against the Companyas at 3l March ,rr) 
^t:r. 

holdilg any benami propedy undcr tlre Berranti Tralsactions(Prohibition) Act, lggg (as amended in 20r6) and rures made trrereunder.

ii. The Company's inventory comprises of Villas and lhe manasemenr he< the ^^ti^., ^c,.^-:c.lsuch inventory physicary at reast once in a year. *" n";:1';;""::#ili:#7::ffiyJ:?
inventory during the year and no materiar dis",..panci.s *here noticed

' The company has not been sa,ctioned wor.king capitar rirnits in excess ofRs. 5 crores,in aggregate, at any points of time duri,g trre iear, liom banks or financial institutionson the basis of securiry. of cu*ent assets. Accordingly, reporting *A. "r"r*iiiXii"fthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Cornpany has

in the nature of loal
or any other parties
the Company.

not plovided any gllamntee or security. or granted a
rs, secured or unsecured, to cornpanies, fir.nrs, linrited
during the year. Accordingly, reporting to that exter licable to

lIl.



MODI & MODI REALTY HYDERABAD PVT LTD

5 -4-187 13 &4,11 floor,
MG Road, Secunderabad -
500 003. Phone: +91-40-
6633555 r

vIl

v l.

We additionally confirm that, there are no guarantees issued up to the year_end which are yetto be recorded and alr obrigations in respect of guarantees have been dLrry recorded in theregister of guarantees and disclosed.

'Theinvestmentsmadeandthetermsandconcritio,sofinvestments,madeduringtheyear
are, in our opinion, prirna facie, not prejudicial to the Contpany,s interest.

Thecompany has not provided any roans during the year and thus, provisions for Section l g5
shall not appty to rhe conrparry. Furheq the C;*p;,r il;;;f ti.a *irt, the provisions ofSection I86 ofrhe Act.

The company has not accepted any deposit or amounts wrrich are deemed to be deposits.

The maintenance ofcost records has not been specified by the centrar Government under sub-section (l) ofsection 148 ofthe companies Act,2013 for the business activities carried outby the Company.

The company does not rrave any disputed statutory dues outstanding as on the barance sheet
date.

We additionally confirm that,.the Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues' including Income Tax and othe. rnaterial statutory drres ,ppticuatl
to it with the appropriate autho.ities trrough there has been a sright deray in f.eu,cases. Therewere no undisputed amounts payabre in respect of Income Tax anil other. materiar statutory
dues in arrears as at 3 l March 2025 for a period of more than six months fi.orn the date they
became payable. Further, there are no undisputed amounts remaining unpaid for over 6months in case ofany statutory dues.

we also confirrn that, we have provided comprete info.ration with respect .o the applicabre
statutory laws, statutory paynrents made a,d the payabres outstanding as on the barance sheet
date' The company's operations did not give rise to any dues on accourt of provident Fund,
Employees State Insura,ce, Goods and Service Tax, Sales Tax, Excise Duty, Customs Duty
and Value Added Tax.

There were no transactions that are not recorded in the books ofaccount to be srrrrerclered ordisclosed as income during the period in the tax assessmerlts ,rder the rrrconr e Tax Act, l g6 l.

The company has not procured any loans or bo*owings from a,y financial institutes, banksor Government during the year.

We additionally confirm that, the Corrpany has
on demand for witlt an interest char ged @ 7 .25%
been specified. With respect to the same rve co
been demanded for repayment during the year.

tx

borowed loan of Rs 19.4g Lakhs. r.epayablc
per annunl fbr u h ich no pal.ntcnt tcr.ms have

nfirm that neither pr.inci have

vl.



MODI & MODI REALTY HYDERABAD PVT LTD

5-4-18713&4,il ftoor,
MG Road, Secunderabad _
500 003.Phone: +91-40-
6633555 t

x

' The company has not been decrared as a wilful defaurter by any bank or financiarinstitution or other lender' Further, the company has not received any show-cause noticein accordance with RBI Circular datea .luty i, ZOt+ on wilfrl d"furlt"rr.

. The Cornpany has not raised any funds on shoft term basis during the year.

' The company has no subsid iaries, j oint ventures or associate company, therefore has nottaken any funds from any entity or person on account of o, to ,""t th" obrigations of itssubsidiaries,ioi,t ventures or associate company as defined under companies Act,20l3.

The company has not raised any lnoney by rvay of initial public offer. or further pLrblic offer(including debt instruments) during the period.

' Furthet the company has not made any preferentiar aJlotrnent or private placernent ofshares (fully or partly or optionally) du.ing the yea..

No material frauds committed on the company have come to our notice during the period norhas the company conrmitted anyfraud on other.. No ."po,i ,ra"r srb-scctio, ( J2 ) ofsection143 of the companies Act has been filed in Forrn aor- + 
", 

p,."..,.ibed Lr,der.r.ure 13 ofCompanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Centml Govemnrent, dur.ing the yearand up to the date ofthis letter.

. During the year, the Company^ is not a prescribed Company as per Section 177(9) andRule 7 ofthe Companies Act,20l3.

. The Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the period.

The Company is nor a Nidhi Company.

The Company is in cornpliance with lgg ofthe Companies Act,20l3. where applicable, forall tmnsactions.with the rerated parries and tne aetaits oireil,.i'run, tra,sacrions have been

;::i:ffiJ,*:::"Jed 
i, the nnanciar statenrent' 't;' ;;';qui'ed bv rhe appricabre

' The company is a private lirnited company and thus, provisions of Section 777 are notapplicable.

As per section l3g ofthe Act, the company is not requirecl to hirve an intental aLtdit system.

The Company has not entered illto any non_cash ransactions with directors or personscomected with him as specified under section 192 
"f 

ilA;;.

xt

xll.

xllt.

xrv.

xvt. Th.e Company is not required to be registered under section 45-rAIndia Act, I934. of tl:e ol'



MODI & MODI REALTY HYDERABAD PVT LTD

5-4-187/3&4, II floor,
MC Road, Secunderabad _
500 003.Phone: +91-40-
66335551

The Group co,sisting of the cornpany and alr its fellow subsidiaries in India does nothave any core investment company as part ofthe group.

The cornpany has incurred cash losses during trle currert audit period an, crLrring pr.ecedingaudit period. Conlputatiol of the same is attaclred below fo. yorlr ret_er.ence:

No Auditor has retired during the current audit period.

ffir:.H:*r1tr"ff":,jLH* rosses but the same is not resurting in a nesative ner

;x"m1,il:;;#;;;:J::ililT:,'ffi 
.['.;]i,,i:t,:1;1Xl j;:mi:

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined under the Regulationsby tlre Reserve Bank oflndia.

135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company

xvt I

xvlll

xrx

The management basis the cash flows and other receivables (Liquidity statement asprovided for your review which is^ attached * nrr"lr*)1, believes that materialuncertainty exists as on the date of the audit ,"po.t tnri Co,rpany is not capable ofmeeting its Iiabiiities existing at the date ofbaranceshe.t u. ui] ,r,t,", tr,.y ra, due withina period ofo,e year fiom the balance. sheer 0",;. ;i;;;;;,, Modi Housing privareLimited and Modi Fina,cial Services LLp, ,,,," *.,r"*.r,lr*e conrmitted to continueto provide financial support, to the extent,r*oo, ," .r.ii. ti.," co.puny to meet theirfinancial obligations in case ofany unfor.r""n finun"iulil""rir,*

Managernent rcpresents that the
and it believes that the Conrnan 

e arc no irnnrediate plans lor liqrriclatin_!t the Comparry

or Uulun". ,rr""t u. ;,;; il;il: 
shal be abte to meer irs liabitities 

"*iriirg ,, ,1,;.;i,.
sheet dare 

".,, 
,*, ,i* Hj;':* 

fall due rvithin a period of one year liorn thc barance
statements is approp.iut"l 

- "'" -oncern assulnption adopted irt preparation of financial

)Lx. Section

We, the undersign
Cornpany.

Yours faithfully,

Particulars FY 2U21_25

(Rs. il lakhs)
FY 2023-24

(Rs. in lakhs)Net Profit after tax (43.43) (le.32)Add: Depreciation
Cash Profit/ (Losses) (43.43)

( re.32)

ed, confinn that we are authorized to sign this letter ofrepresen lfofthe



MODI & MODI REALTY HYDERABAD PVT LTT)

5-4-18713&4,ll f1oor,
MG Road, Secunderabad -
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For and on behalf of Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad PriYate Linritcd

Soham Nlodii Gaur:rng Ja1'ntr I Nlod1'

Director
DIN: 00522546

Director
DIN: 00522520

)J



MODI & MODI REALTY HYDERABAD PVT LTD

5-4-187l3&4, II floor,
MG Road.
Secunderabad - 500 003.
Phone: +91 -40-66335551

Date: llf fru1o$ &oAo

To
ASAgarwal&Co.,
Chartered Accountants,
3 -3 - | I 6 / A., Kachiguda,
Hyderabad - 500027

Sub: List ofoutstanding litigation as on 31 March 2025

With reference to the above stated subject, I, Soham Satish Modi, director of Modi & Modi Realty
Hyderabad Private Limited do hereby confirm that the Company has no outstanding litigation by or
against the company as on 3lst March, 2025.

\, We request you to kindly take the same on record.

For Modi & Modi Realty Hyder:rbad Plivate Limited

I
Sohrh Sr

Director

DIN: 005225,16



MODI & }IODI REALTY HYDERABAD PVT LTD
5-4-187/3&4, ll floor,
MG Road,
Secunderabad - 500 003.
Phone: +91-40-66335551

Date: l4 I uq'Jst &oA5.J

A S Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
3-3-tt6/A,
Kachiguda"
Hyderabad - 500027

Dear Ashish,

Sub: Details required for the audit the year ended 3l March 2025

This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Modi & Modi Realty

Hyderabad Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "company") for the year ended 3lst March,

2025.

We confirm to the best ofour knowledge and belief, the following information ofthe Company given

to you in connection with your audit ofthe Company's financial statements for the year ended 3 I March

2025, are true and correct.

, List ofRelated Parties

S,No. Name of the Re lated il Nature of relatiouship

Soham Satish Modi (Director) Key Management Personuel

Ashish Pramod Modi (Director)
Gaurang Jayantilal Mody (Director)
Modi & Modi Financial Services LLP Entity having control over Company

Modi Housing Private Limited Entities having significant infl uence

over the CompanyModi Properties Private Limited
Modi Realty Gagillapur LLP Partnership Firms in rvhich Company

has controlModi Realty Genome Valley LLP
Modi Realty Miryalaguda LLP
Modi Realty Pocharam LLP
Modi Realty Vikarabad LLP
Nilgiri Estates

Pararnount Estates

Modi Ventures
Modi & Modi Constructions

N Square Lifesciences LLP Enterprises in which Key Management
personnel and /or their relatives have
significant influence

Modi Realry Siddipet LLP
Soharn Modi HUF
Summit Sales LLP
AVR Gulmohar Welfare Associatior



N{ODI & MODI REALTY HYDEI{AI}AD PVT LTI)
5-4- I 87/3&4, Il floor,
MG Road.
Secunderabad - 500 003.
Phone: +91-40-66335551

7 ,46,6t,152

81,94,689

+Name of the
related party

Nature of
transacti0n

Detrils of
lgreement and

approval in
meetings

Amount of
transaction

during the year

Bllance
receivable /
(payable)

Modi Housing
Private Limited

Unsecured Loan NA 19,47,764 (1,29,s6,289)

Interest on
Unsecured loan

NA 10,3 8,835 (9,34,9s 1 )

Modi Properlies
Private Limited

Accounts ald
Management
Services

NA (2. r 60)

Modi & Modi
Constructions

Capital
contribution (net
of drawings)

NA (3,00,000) 9,06,647

Share of Profit or
(loss)

NA 2,78,772

Modi Realty
Gagillapur LLP

Capital
contribution (net
of drawings)

NA '10,000

Share of Profit or
(loss)

NA (26,es7)

Modi Realty
Genome Vally
LLP

Capital
contribution (net
ofdrarvings)

NA 2,24,000

Share ofProfit or
(loss)

NA ( l 7,s 8,832)

Modi Realty
Miryataguda LLP

Capital
contribution (net
of drawings)

NA (38,90,000) 1,47,08,167

Share of Profit or
(loss)

NA ( l 7.94,060)

Modi Realty
Pocharam LLP

Capital
contribution (net
of drawings)

NA 9,53,896 t ,93,43,413

Share of Profit or
(loss)

1,60,554

Modi Realty
Vikarabad LLP

Capital
contribution (net
ofdrawings)

NA 3,88,000

Share of Profit or
(loss)

NA (75,651)

Modi Ventures Capital
contribution (net
of drawings)

NA ( 16,98,48s)

Share of Profit or
(loss)

NA 1,69.049

Nilgiri Estates Capital
contribution (net
ofdrawings)

NA (81,40,360)

Details oftransactions with the related parties during the year ended 3l March 2025

43,188

I,?4,36,242

NA

(1s,000)

64,34,000



MODI & MODI R-EALTY HYDERABAD PVT LTD
5-4-187i3&4, lI floor,
MG Road,
Secunderabad - 500 003.
Phone: +91 -40-6633555 I

Details ofall the ongoing legal court case proceeding in respect ofthe company as at the year-

end are as follows:

Details ofother contingent Iiabilities aud/ or assets are as fbllorvs

Details offraud detected and corrective action taken by tlte management

We, the undersigned, confirm that we are authorized to sign this letter of representation on behalfofthe

Company.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of i & Mridi Ilealty Hyderrbad Private Limite(l

Sxti GauraIlg J:rvantilal Modv{

Share ofProfit or
(loss)

NA (21 ,71 ,2t4)

Pararnount
Estates

Capital
contribution (net
of drawings)

NA I,00,553

Share of Profit or
(loss)

NA (s0.6 r 8)

AVR Guln.rohar
Welfare
Association

Rent & Amenity
Charges

NA (42,120)

Description of the
subject matter of

the case

!Vhcther
disclosurc nrade in

the financial
statements?

trstinrated
outcomc ofthe

case, if
ascertainable

trstimated
provision to
be created

<further
renrarks, if

any>

NIL

Description of the
contingent liability/ asset

(other than that
mentioned above)

Whether disclosure
urade in the linancial

statements?

Estimatcd
provision to be

created

<further remarks, if
any>

NIL

Department
in which

fraud was
detected

Description
of thc
fra ud

The levcl of
managenrent
involved in
the fraud

Nanre of
persons
involved

in the
I'r'nud

Monitory
quantification
of the fraud

Delnils on
hol the

fraud rvas
dctcctcd

Corrective
action

taken by
the

managenlc
nt

NIL

DIN: 00522546

otli

l

Director
DIN: 00522520

(4,38,62s)



5-4-18713&4, ll floor,
MC Road,
Secunderabad - 500 003.

MODI & MODI REALTY HYDERABAD PVT LTD Phone: +el-40-66335551

This is to certiff that the cash balance at the branch located in Hyderabad is Rs. 5451- as on

31s March 2025 which is in line with the balance in the books of <company name>.

Particulars Quantity Amount in Rs.

Ph sical Cash:

Denomination -

100 5 500

20 2 40

5 1 5

Total amount s45

Total Cash as er books

Confirmed by Checked by Checked by Audit team

member

&ff,.1v4----
R Vinod Kumar
(Cashier)
Date:

h.
A Sambasiva Rao
(Finance
Date:

Radhika

Date:

CASH CERTIFICATE

545



NIodi & NIodi Renlty Hyderalrad Privat€ Linrited
CIN: U70l00TG2020PTClJ8,l75
B:rlince Sheet as at 3l March 2025
(All rmounts crDrcssed in Indian ruDtes L:tlihs, et t sharc dnta or as othcrrvisc slntrd)

Particulxrs Note
As at

3l I\Iarch 2025
As ht

3l ;\'l,r rch 202{

Equity aud liabilities
Shareholders' fulds
Share capilal
Reserves and surplus

Currcnt li{bilities
Short-term borrowings
Tmde payables

- total outstanding dues of micro and small entcrprises

- total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro and

small enterprises

Other cun€nt liabilities
Short-term provisions

I t8.35
224.56

I18.35
282.82

3

4

1.3.t2.90 1.101.17

5

6

I29.56 t6 ,-.22

53.95

0.68

,l

IJ

l3{.r9

Total
Asscls

Non-current essets

Non-current investments

Other non-current assels

27.09

1.205.12

2.48

1.166.38

2.48

9

t0

II
t2
t3
l4

201.60

3 t6. ti)

I,t6U.35

i5 t.25
ir.00

t.62
0.10

3.10

319.50

_1i?L!e Liq !3

Colpornte lnfornlation & Signiticant accounting policies I & 2

See accompanyiug Notes (2.1-23) folmillg an illtegr{l part ofthe FiDirDciirl Strterrcnts
As per our report ofcven date attached

l'orA S Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firrrr Rcgistlation l\i o. 0lJ9875

For irld on behalf of thc Board of Directors of
NIodi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Linrited

N-,
So Sutish Nodi

I
(; ,,ll ,lui ilrtl:t
i\ lo dl
l)il.ector
DIN: 00512520

Place : l'lydeubad
Date : 29 Scptetnber 2025

Ashish Ag.r

Pirtrcr
Membership N
UDIN:25222861
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 29 Septsnber 2025

Dircttor
DIN:00522546

621

Place : Hyderabad

Date : 29 Septernber 2025

Ytl

)1

wR

o
(-)Charlered

Accounla

t

CurrcDt assets

lnvcntories
Trade rcccivables

Cash and bank balances

Othc[ currcnt assets

0.06

'7.99

5.3 8

IS0.66

1.51 .33

112.91

Totxl



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderalrad Private Litnited
CIN: U70l00TC2020PTCl38,175
Statement of Prolit and Loss for the year elded 3l March 2025
(All anrouilts expressed in lnalian ru Dees Lakhs, exceDt sharc (lrta or as othcrwise stated)

Particulnrs Note
Ye.rr e ded

.ll NInrch 2025

Year eDded

3l l\'larch 202,1

lncome
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Itrcome

Profit before tlrx

Tax expense

Current tax

Tax fbr carlier years

Defelred trx

Profit/ (Loss) for the period

Earnings prr equity shale
Basic (in Rs.)

Diluted (iu Rs.)

Fac€ value per share (in Rs.)

17.00
6.13

6',7.23

5.23

l5
l6

53.13 72.16

t7
t7
l8
0

20

38. t5
10.4t

58.'7'1

5.65

49.05
(10.90)

'7 .6)
38.74

2.45

1t2.98 86.96

(s9.8s)

( 1.58)

(r 4.s0)

.l.Nl

( l.s8)

(s8.27) (19.32)

25

(4.92)
(1.e2)

l0

(1.6i)
( r.63)

10

Corporate lnformation & Significant accounting policies I & 2

See accompanying Notes (2.1-28) forming an intcgral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report ofeven dale atlached

l'orASAgrnval & Co.
CLartered Accountants
Finn Rcgistratior N 7S

Fol and on bchllf ol tlo lioxr(l of [)ilcclor's 01'

llodi & XIorli Realty Hyderabatl l'ri\:rtr l-inrite(l

N/ t
Ashish Aga
Partlter

I

Mcmbership No:
UDIN:25222861B \\D(5 617

Placc : Ilyderabad
Date : 29 September 2025

harn Satish I\I od i C

).

til

Place : tlydclabad
Date : 29 September 2025

Director
DIN:005225.16

Dircctor
I)lN:0051152t)

Placc : Hyderabld
Date : 29 September 2025

o
f

Accountafi
Charlere

Expetrses

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Chauges in Inventories

Finance cos!s

Share ofloss from Pannership firms
Other expenses

Total Expenses

{.82



Modi & lvtodi Rcalty Hyderabad Plivarc Lintitcd
CIN: U70 t00TC2020PTC 138.175

Cash Flow Statement for the year €nded Jl l\lrrch 2025
(All amounts erDressed in lntlitn ru lrees Lakhs, exc t share (latn or ns otherwise stated)

Particulars
Year euded

3l March 2025

Year endrd
.ll NIarch 202,1

Cesh flow from operating activities
Profit before t&x

Adjustnrents for:
lnterest Expenses

Share of loss from investments

Share ofProlit on Investment

Operating profit lrefore working capital changes

Adjustmeats for working capital changes:
(Increase/decrease in Inventory
(lncrease)/decrease in trade receivables
(lncrcase) in loans and advunces
(lncrease) in other irssets

Increiue in trade payables

Increase in provisions

Increase in other liabilities
Cash generated from operathg activities
Income t&\es paid (net ofrefunds)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities (A)

Cash llorv flom ilvestirg activitics
Inlestmcot in Pannership liflrs and LLI's
Net crsh generated frotlJ (used in) irvesting activities (B)

Cash flow from lirancing activities
Prcceeds fron/ (repayment of) short-term bonowings (net)

lnterest paid

Net cash gcrertted fronr/(uscrl in) finxnci g activitits ( C)

Net (decrease)/incrcase iD cilsh and crsh

equivalents (AtB+C)
Cash and cash equivalenls at the beginning olthe )'ear
Cash aud cash equivalelts at the €nd ofthc yedr

10.t9
5 8.77
(6. r3)

r.59
.ll{.74
(5.13)

(s9.8s) ( 14.s0)

38.15
57.00

26.10

(0.07)

(r0.90)
(5?.00)
.l().05

({r 05)
(r.05)

0.10
(0.06)
(4.70)
42.40

136.07

1.58

( 11.32)

r37.66 ( 11.32)

(91.39) (ti,.75)
(9 1.39 ) (16.75)

(37.66)
(6.83)

65.69
(6.97\

A,NI'

o
o

Chartered
ktountant

94.49\ s\n

t.78 (2.15)

t.62 3.9'l

-1.{0 1.62

t.l8



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limited
CIN: U70100TG2020PTC138475
Cash Florv Statement for the year end€d 3l Mnrch 2025
(All anrounts expressed in Indian rupecs Lakhs, exceDt shtre d:tta or ns othenvise stated)

Noles:
l. The above cash llow statement has been prepared under the "ltrdirect lvledrod" as sct out iri AS-3 on Cash

2. Cash and bilrk balanccs com rises of:

Particulars
As at

3l March 2025

As at
3l March 2024

Balance with banks
- in current accounts

Cash in hand

Cash and cash equivalents (as per AS-3 Cash flow
statement)
Other bank balance

- In eiumarked accounts - balances held as margin money

Cash and bank balanccs as per Note l3

3.39
0.0 t

J.40

.1.10

t .62
0.01

t.62

1.62

3. Reconciliation of liabilities liom llnancing acti!itics
Slort tclm lrorrorvin

Corporatc Informa(ion & Significrnt rccounting policics I .t 2

Sce acconrpanying Notes (2,1-28) forrrrillg nn inlegral pnrt of tIe FintrDCixl Stnlcmertls

As per our report ofeven dale atlachcd
ForASAgarwal&Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0149875

Ashish Aga

Partrier
Membcrship No: 2

UDIN: 252228618MUUWX5627

Place : I lldcEbad
Date : 29 September 2025

For ard on behalfofthe Board ofDirectols of
l\lodi& Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limited

(, hanr S.rtisl NIodi
C:l ng ny:r n til
l\'lody
Director
DIN:00522520

J

Dircctor
DIN: 00522546

l'lace: Hydelabad
Date : 29 Septcmbcr 2025

Hlclerabad
29 Scptcrnbcr'2025

l'lace
Dote

:_..

As at
3l March 2025

r\s xt
ll NIalch 202{

Prrtirulrrs

t6'7.22

19.48
(57.14)

t0l .54

1t5.36
69.67

Opening Balance

Proceeds

Repaynrent

Transferred to long term borrowings
129.56 167.22Closing Balance

Chartered
nts

"t\



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Linritcd
CIN: U70100TC2020PTC138475
Significatrt accouoting policies and other explaratory information as rt atrd for the year ended 3l
March 2025

Corporate lnformation
Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limited is a private company incolporated in lnelia uncler Lhe

provisions of the Companies Act,20l3 with CIN: U70l 00TG2020PTC l3 8475 on l5 January 2020

having its rcgistered otlice al 5-4-t87/3 & 4 Soham Mansion, M.G. Road Secunderabad, Hyderabad'fG

500003.

The Company having CtN No: U70I00TG2020PTC 13 8475 has been setup with the objective of
development of immovable propeny into plots, residential complex, houses, commercial complex, shops,

office complex. etc. and also to buy.nd sell immovable properties. The company is also proriding

consultancy seNices relaled to real estatc industr).

2 Sigllificant accourtillg policics

2.1 Basis ofaccounting and prepNration offinancial statenrents

The financial statements have been plcpared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ["GAAP"] in

compliance with the provisions of the Conrpanies Act, 2013 and the Accounting Standards as specilicd in

t[c Companies (Accounting Standards) l{u1es.2006 read with Rulc 7(l)ol-lhc (irmpanies i,\ccourtls)

Rules,2014 issued by the Ministry ofCorpomte Atluirs in rcspect ofscction ll:i ot thc CorrDlni.s \0t,
2013. Furthcr, the guidance iotevaonouDccrnents issued by the lnstilute ot Chartered Accountanls of
India (lCAl) are also considered, rvherever applicable cxccpt to the extent where compliance rvith olher

statutory promulgations override thc safle requiring a diff'ereflt treatment. The accounting policies have

been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year, unless

otherwise mentioned in the no1es.
i- []se ofestimetes

'fhe prcparation oi' linancial slllemcnts in contbrrritl N ith CAA I' r!'(luircs thxt lhc rriuagcrn cnt (rf

the Company to mukc eslinatcs and ilssumplions that alleot thc rcpor'lt,.l arrorrnts ol-irconrc a]ld

expenses ofthe period, the reportcd balanccs ofassets and liabilitics ancl thc disclosulcs lelating Io

contingent liabilities as ofthe dat€ olthe financial statcments. Future results could diiler duc to these

estimates and the dillercnccs between the actual results aod the estimates are recognised in lhe period

in which these results are knorvn/materialised.

ii. Cash and bank balatrces
Cash comprises cash in hand and dcposits wittr banks. Cash equivalcnts arc short-temr balanccs (\ ilh
an original maturity ofthree monlhs or less from the date o[ rcquisilion). highll liquid irrrcslrnc]rts

that are readily convertible into knorn aflounts ofcash and rvhich urc subject to insigr:ilicant ris[ of
changes in value.

iii. Cash flow statemert
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary iterns

and tax is adjusted for the effects oftransactions ofnon-cash nature and any det'ermls or accruals of
past or future cash rcceipts or paymeDts. The cash llows fiom opcrating. inYesting ancl linancing

activities ol'the Compan] arc scprogatc(l based on the a!ailable il,tlbrrtaliort.

(
(m

Chartered



trlodi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Priv,rte Limitcd
CIN: U70l00TC2020PTCl38l75
Sig[ificant accounting policies and oth€r explatlatory irfornration as at An(l for the ycar enrled 3l
March 2025

2,2 Summary ofsignificatrt accountitrg Policies
a. Rcvelue Recognitiol

The company derives revenue primarily from real estate business comprising activities ofbuying and

selling of irnmovable properties and developnrent ol'immovablc plopert) irrlo plots and lhci.

subsequent sales.

Sale ofVillas:
Revenue fiom sale ofvillas is generally recognized in the financial year in nhich the sale deeds arc

executed resulting in transfer of signilicant risk & reward of ownership of the villas to respeative

buyers. Further, revenue is recognised pending execution of registerd sale deed based on the

executed agreement for sale where the buyer has completed all his obligations under thc agreenrent

and the possession ofthc prope y is also granted to the buler and thcre c\isls no unce|tirirrt\ in

,'llim^rF .^llc.ri^n ^f rnn.i,lerqtinn linnr h,Ler

Other Income
Share ofprofit/ loss li'om partnership lirms aod Limited Liability Partnership in rvhich the Company

is a partner is accounted for in the financial year ending on the date ofthe balance sheet.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis. Dividends are accounted as and when the

right to receive arises.

b. Property, plant and equipuent, I t,rttgible assets and Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are ca[ied at cost lcss accumulated dcpreciation and irrPairnlcnt

losses, if any. The cost of fixed assets includes intercst on borrowings attributable to acquisitiott of
qualifling lixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended usc aod other incidental

expenses incuned up to that date, Subsequent expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalized only

if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously

assessed standard of performance.

The intangible assets, it'any, shall be recorded at cosl and shall be carlicd at cost lcss irccturLrlittcd

amortization and accumulated impainrent losses, ifany.

c. Foreigo Currency Transactions and Traoslations
i. ltritial Recogritiotr

Transactions in foreign cunencies gntered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange

rates prevailing on the date ofthe transaction or at mles that closely approximate the rale at the

date of the transactiorl.
ii, MeasureDcnt of Forcign Currency lloletlry Itenrs at the llnlarlcc Shcet Dntc

Foreign currency monct.ily items (o1her than dcrivative contracts) ofthe Company ouLslundine at

the Balance Sheet date are restatcd at the year-end rates.

Non-monetary items are caffied at historical cost. Exchangc dillcrerrces arisiDg out of lhese

translations arc chargcd to the Statement ofPlolit and Loss.

iii. Treatmetrt of Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement / restatement ofshort-term foreign currency monetary

assets and liabilities of the Cornpany are recognized as income or expcnsc in thc Statemcnl of
Plollt and Loss.

o
Chartercd o

Accountan''s o



Modi & Modi Rcalty Hyderabad Private Limited
CIN: U70100TC2020PTC118475
SigrrificaDtaccountingpoliciesandothererpl{nntoryiformatioDasataodfortheyearcntlcdJI
March 2025

d. Irvestments:
Current lnvestments are carried at lower of cost and market value deternined on an indilidual
investment basis. Long term invest ents arg caffied at cost. However, provision for diminution in

value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value ofinvestment.

Earnings per Share:
Basic ard Diluted Earnings per Shale (EPS) is leponed in accotdancc sith Accounting Stlndtrrd

(AS) - 20, "Earnings per Sharc". issucd by the Institute of Chartercd AccouDlants ol ltrr.iia and

notified under Section 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. EPS is computed by dividing the net prctit
or loss lbr the year by the weighted average number ofEquity Shares outstanding durirrg the year.

f, Provisions and Contingetrt Liabilities:
i. Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree

ofestimation, if:
a) The Cornpany has a prescnt obligation rs a result ofa past event;

b) Probable outllo\v ofresources is expected to settlB the obliSirtiorl: i1l)d

c) The amourrt ofthe obligation can be reliably cstimated.

ii. Reimbursement expccted in respect ofexpenditLlre requircd to settle a provision is recognized

only when it is virtually cefiain that the reimbursernsnt will be received.

iii. Contingent Liabilily is disclosed in the case of
a) A presert obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outllow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation
b) A present obligation rvhen no reliable estinale is possiblc. and

c) A possible obligation alising lion past cvcnts \vherc the probabilil)'ol oLrtlio\ ttftcsoLttccs

is not remote.

iv. Contingent Assets are neilher recognized, nor disclosed.

v. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets are reviewed at cach Balancc Sheet

dale.

Defered Tax is recognized on tining differences bct\veen the accountiDg income and the tn\able

income for the year, and qualitied usiog the tax rates ard laws enacted or substantivcly cnacted as on

the Balance Sheet date.

Defened Tax Assets arc recognized and canied forward to lhe extcnt that there is a reasonable

certainty that sul'ficient future tixable income rvill be available against rvhich such det'erred tax .tsscts

can be realizcd.

b. Opcrating cycle
Based on the nature of activities of tlre Company and the nonnal timc bclwccn acquisition of isscts

and their realisation in cash or cash ecluivalents, the Company has detennined its opcrating cycle as

12 months for the purpose ofclassification ofits assets rurd liabilities as current and non-current,

A

red C)

o
c

']

g. Taxes:
Tax on income for the curent year is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits

computed in accordance rvith the provisions ofthe lncoue T&\ Act. 1961.



Nlodi & Nlodi Realry Hydcrabrd Privrte Limitcd
CIN: U70l00TC2020PTCl38{75
Notes forming pxrt offinancial stntcmeIlts as at and for the ycar endcd 3l Ntarch 2025
(All rmoulrts expresscd io lndian rupres Lakhsr cxcept share drtx or as otherwise stated)

J Share cxpital As llt 3l iUarrh 2025 As at 3l l\larch 202-l
\o. ol shalcs ,\rrrount No. ol'rh:i,r\

Authoriscd shdrr cxpitll
Equity shures ol Rs. l0 cach

Equity shares ofRs. l0 ench

t) Rcronciliation of shar0 clpital

At thc beginning of the ) cir'
Sharcs issued during lhc )cLrr
Brlance at thc cnd ofthe )clr

lssued, subscribcd and fully paid up shrres

t). 50 00(l r 25.00 12.50.000 125.00

12,50,000 125-00 12.50,000 125.00

I t,83,464 I18.35 11,83,464 r 18.35

I r,83,{6{ I I ti.l5 | 1,83,t61 | 18.35

As :rt 3l NInrch 2025 .\s ut 3l Ilnrch l(12.1

No. ol sharcs Al|lo nt No. ol'shal'rr
r 1.83.464 l 18.35 I t.83.{6-} lt8.l5

I I,tU,{6{ I I8.35 I l,8J,J6{

b) Detsils ofshareholders holdiog more than 57o shares in the Company
As at 3l March 2025 ,\s Al Sl \l.rrch 2021

No. ofsharcs 7o llolding l\o. olshares 7. llolding
Equity shares 0fRs. l0 cach

Modi Housing Private Linrited
Modi & Modi Financial Services LLP

5.82.500

l l,{tJ,{6t 100.00% I l,8J,.l6J t00.00,1,

c) Equity sharcs hcld by the Ilolding Colllpan)
As !t 3l Mrrch 2025 As at 3l l\l{rch 202J

No. ofshures o/" Holding No, ofshares % Ilolding
Equity shares ofRs. l0 cach

Modi& Modi Financial Sclviccs LLP 6.00.964 50.78% 6.00.96.1 i 0. i ti",1,

6,00,96{ 50.78"h 6.0r).96.1 50.li,%

d) Tcrms/rights attsched to shares:

Thc Company has one class of equity shares having a par value ol Rs. l0 each. Ench holder of equity

shares is entitled [o o e \ote Der share.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the

ensuing annual general meeting, except interim dividend. During the year ended 3l March 2025, no

dividend hirs been declared by the Board of directors (Pr€viflrs ) ear - Nil).
ln the evert ofliquidation ofthc Conrpany. thc holders olcquitl shares \\ill bc cntillcd 1o rcc.i\. iLr\ ol

the remaining assets ofthe Conrpixly alicr distribution ofall pret'crertial amourls irnd distribution rr iLl bc

in propo(iou to the DuDrber ol'equily shares held by lhe shcrcholders.

e) Disclosure of Sh!reholding of Promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of pronroters as at 3I March 2025 is as follows:

Shares hcld by promotcrs 7o

Pronrotct nn le As at 3l Nlarch 2025 .\s:lt 3l \Inrch 202-l Yn Changc
during thr ),cnr

6.00 961

.t9.22.,6

50.78%

5. til.51)0
6.00.96.1

.tt).2201,

50.780/o

No. of
shirrcs

7o of bt:ll No. ol sharcs

shr res

7o of totxl
sharcs

Modi Housirg Private
Lirnited
Modi & Modi Finalcial
Services LLP

R

5,82,500

6,00,964

4t).22Yo

50.180/o

5.82,500

6,00,964

49.22't

50.7 8%

0%

0%

0 e
o
oC

\r,c,-\
*

II 8J 461 100 ll 8l 16{ 100.00%

I r tt.J5



Modi & Ilodi Realty HyderIlbnd Privnte Limitcd

CIN: U?0100TG2020PTC1J8475
Xot". fo".ing pua of financial stntements as at and for thc yenr ended 3 I M arch 2025

t,lfilrnoun,riip"".sed in lntlian rupees Laklts, cxcepl share data or as othenvise stated)

As at
4 Reserves and surPlus

S€curities Premium
llalancc at the beginning

ofthe year'

Add: Premium on issue

Balance at the end of

Surplus/ (delicit) in the Statemetrt of Profit and Loss

Balance at the bcginning ofthe year

Add : ProfiV (loss) tbr
Rxtance at thc end oI thc Ycar

Tot.rl

5 Short-tcrmborrowings

Unscctred
l-oans and advanccs liom related parties+

- liom otlrers

6 Trrde p8yable$

Total outstanding dues ofnlicro and small enterprises (Ret'er note 6 2

belorv)
Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other th'rn micro cntelprises and

small enterp ses (Refer note 6'l below)

As at

3I NI arch 2025 3l I\l a rth 2021

1.262.I 8 1.262.18

1.262.18 1,262. r 8

39.9620.64
(58.27)

lr()

*Alorementioned loan from related panies is an unsecured loan repayable on denlatrd along llith irtcrcst

(l 7 .25Y" p.a.

r 9.32)

tJ1.62',1 20.6J

r.22J.56 1.281.s2

As at As at

ll March 2025 3 I Xtarch 2024

129.56 l()1.12

0.i )6

0.06

161.22

As at As at
1l N.r'.clr 2025 3l I\lrl.ch 202{



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limited
CIN: Il70l00TG2020PTCl38475
Notes forDring pr rt of finan cinl st:rtenrcnts nsat,rlld fortIev{:ire ded JI llirch 2025
(All amounts cxpressed in Indian rupees Lakhs, except slr:ir'o d,rta or ns otherN'ise state(l)

6,1 Trade Payables ageing sclredule
AgeiDg for trade payables outstanding as at 3l March 2025 is as follows: Not Applicable
Aseins for trade Dayables outstanding as at 3l March 2024 is as follows:
Particulars

Not
tlrrc

Less than
I ycar l-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3
ycr rs

Totrl

MSME
Others

Disputed dues - MSME
Disputed dues - Others

0.06 0.06

Totnl 0.06 0.06

7 Other current liabilities

Advanc€ from customers

Statutory dues payable

Interest payable

Other payables

8 Short-termprovisions

Provision for lnriome Tax (net ofTDS and Advance tax)
Provision for Audit Fees

As at As at
3l March 2025 3l lllarch 2024

43.50
I .10
9.3 5

0.92

6.83

0.211

53.95 1.r9

As at As at
3l March 2025 f,l March 2024

4.82

0.5'10.63

0.6It 5..18

YH

()

)utstrllding lbr lollorvine Derh(ls from due dnle of Dntnren

6.2 In terms ofsection 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterp ses Development Act 2006, the outstanding

to these enterprises are required to be disclosed. Horvevcr, lhese enterprises are required to be registercd

uDdcr the Act. In the abscncc of the intb|nration about registration ol the [ntcrpriscs unller the above

Act, the required information could not be filnished. In view ot abo\e and in absence ol'rclcrirnt
inlbrmations, the Auditor hru relied on the inlbrmation provided by the m,ulagement.



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Lirrited
CIN: U70l00TC2020PTCl J8475
Notes formilg part offitrancial statements as at and for the year ended 3l March 2025
(All amounts expressed in Indian rupees Lakhs! exccpt share data or as othenvise slat€d)

9 Non-currelrtiIlvcstmcrlts

Others

As rt
3l l\I:rrch 2025

As at
3l i\'lnrch 2024

(a) Investment in Partnership firms
Modi And Modi Constructions
Modi Ventures
NilgiriEstates
Pararnount Estatcs

9.0'7

(16.98)
(81.40)

l.0l

9.28
(18.s3)

(r 24.03)
5.90

(lr) Investmert in Limited Litlrility Pnrtncrship
Modi Realty Gagillapur LLP
Modi Realty Genome Valley LLP
Modi Realty Miryalaguda LLP
Modi Realty Pochamm LLP
Modi Realty Vikarabad LLP

293.,1{ 293.16

Total investnlcnts t66.llJ

Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Market value ofQuoted lnvcstments

Aggregate amount of unquotcd
Provision for diminution in varlue of

1,205.12 1.166.38

Drtrils of Invcstrnert in Partncl shiD firms
(i) The Company is partner oftirm M/s. Modi & Modi Constructions. The share ol'Proi'il/(L.os:) li)r

(ii) The Cornpany is partDef of firm lvl/s. Modi Ventures. The share of Prol]1/(Loss) ibr thc y ear is

Rs. 1.69 Lakhs. 'fhe dctails of l1ncrs ot drc liln are as under:

(iii) The Company is paflner of llrm M/s. Nilgiri Estates. 'fhe sharc of I'rollt/(Loss) tbr lhc rc.rr' is

Rs. -21.71 Lakhs.'lhe dctails of artners oithe finn arc as under

124.36
'7 46.6t
147.08

t93.43
81.95

t24.23
166.44
141.92

182.29

78.87

thc is Rs. 2.79 Lakhs. 'llhe details of artncrs oflhe linrr are as rtndet'

Name ofthe panner
As at 3l Nlarch 2025 As rt.ll Ilrrth 20lJ

Yu oI
share

Capital
Balances

ol' ofsharc
Capital
Bala ces

Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad
Ashish Modi

99.00%
1.00%

9.07

t0.82
99.00%
t.00vo

9.28

t0-79

Name of the part er
As rt 3l Nlarch 2025 As ul .ll i\lurr:h 2{lll

uh ot
sh{ rc

Cnpitil
Ililanccs

C.rpital
Br l,r n ces

Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad
Ashish Modi

99.00v,
1.00%

(16.98)
(0.59)

99.00%
I.00%

(18.s3)
(0.60)

As at 3l iUalch 2025 .\s rt -ll )lrl.ch 2U1.1
o/u of
sh are

Capitxl
Bxla ccs

7o ofshare
CupitrI
Bal.tnces

Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad
Ashish Modi

99.00%
1.00%

(81.64)
(33.07)

99.00y.
1.00%

(124.03)
(32.85)

arlered

(88.32) (127.33)

7o ofsltare

Name ofthe partner



iUodi & l\lodi R€alty l{yderabad I'rivate Litnitcd
CIN: U70l00TC2020PTCl38,l75
Notes forming part offinancial st tenrents as at and for the year endctl 3l l\larch 2025
(All amounts expressed in Indian rupees Lakhs, except share data or as otherwise stnted)

(iii) The Company is partner of lirm l\,|-ls. Paramount Estates. The share of ProfiV(Loss) lbr the year

is Rs. -0.51 Lakhs. The details of crs ofthe firm i:re as under:

As lt Jl i\larch 2tl2J

Details oflnvestment in Limited Liabilitv Partnershipr
(i) The Company is parlner ol'l]rm N'l./s. Ivlodi ltealt) Gagillapur LLI'. -l 

hc sharc ot Prollt/(l-oss) lbr

lhc ear is Rs. -0.27 Lakhs. The dctails ol artners ofthe I'inn arc as under:

NaDe of tIe pafincr
As ut ll l\l:rlth 1025 As rrt f,l NInrcl 202{

'ol
shirle

Capitrl
Bllarces

Cn pilrl
Balances

Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad
Anand Kumar
Kiran Kumar

60.00%
20.00%
20.jovr

t24.36
(2.99)
37.01

60.00%
20.00%
20.000/.

124.23
(2.90)

37. t0

(i) The Company is paltner of llrm M/s. Modi Realtl' Cenonle Valley LLP. The shtue ol
l'roli1,1 Loss ibr the ar is ll.s. -17.59 Lakhs. The details ol ners oflhe lir-nr ale as undcr'

(i) The Company is partner offirm M/s. l\4odi Realty Miryalaguda LLP. The share ofProlit/(Loss)
fbr the vear is Rs. -17.94 Lakhs. The dctuils ol' ners ofthc llrm are as urldcr

(i) The Company is partner of firm L4/s. Modi Realty Pocharam LLP. The share of Protlt/(Loss) for

lhc ycar is Rs. I .6l Lakhs. Tlre details o f partnets ol'the lirm .u e as un(ler:

,\s at 3l l\l:rlth 2025
Cnpitrl
Ilnlances

"k of
share

Cnlitnl
Balances '% of s}aleNamc of the partner

99.Ojvo
1.00%

5.90

9.4t
99.00%
t.00%

l.0l
9.11

Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad
Ashish Modi

As :rl -l I i\lrr'':L 202J.\s at f, I i\Ialth 2025
Cnpit:rl
Bflhnces

"k ol
shnrc

CaDita I

BnlnIlccs
Yu of shrrcNrme ofthe Dnrtner

99.00%
1.00%

'146.61

0.49

99.00%
1.00%

'166.44

0.67
Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad

Ashish Modi

As rt 3l llarch 2025 ,\s it 3l ll{rcl 202.1

7u ofshare
Cnpi(il
llalioces

'ot
shrr€

Capitxl
BaliDccs

Nrnrc ofthe Irftner

141.92

0.75)
99.00y.
r.00%

147.08

0.07

99.00%
t.00%

Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad
Modi Housing Private Limited

As ,rt 3l l\lnrch 2015 ,\s xt ll i\lrrch 2tl2l
Cx pitirl
Bllarrces

Yo of
sha re

Cit pil n I

Ilalallccs
%, ofshareNnnre ofthe plrftner

t82.29
160.'7 6

_-100.38

Modi & Modi Realty llydcrabad
B Anand Kumar
Karunakar Reddy

60.00%
20.0()%
20.00v.

193.43

l6t.3l
r09.93

60.00%
20.0r)%
20.00%

stsrffilflo

7u of share



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limited
CIN: U70l00TG2020PTCl38.175
Notes foruring part offinancial statenreDts ,rs rt xnd for thc year entled 3l ILrrch 2025
(All amounts expressed in Indian rupccs LIrkhs, exccpt sh,rrc dxta or as otherN'ise stAtcd)

(i) The Company is partner of firm 1\4./s. Modi Realty Vikarabad LLP. The share ofProtit/(Loss) 1-or

the year is Rs. -0,?6 Lalhs. The dctails ofpartners ofthc firm are as under:

l0 0ther 1lotr-current assets

Balance with govemmcnt authorities

As at
3l Mxrch 2025

As at
3l March 2024

2..18 2..18

ll Inventori€s

Stock in trade - llats/ villas

,\s tt
Jl i\'larch 2025 Jl NIarch 202J

316.10 351.25

-l 16. l0 15.1.25

l2 Trade receivables

Seculed. considered -qood
Unsecured, considered gclod

Unsecured, considered doubtl'ul

Less: Provision for doubtt'irl rcceivablcs

l2.l Trade Receivables ageing schedule

Ageing for trade receivables - outstanding as at Jl l\Ialch 2025: Not applicable

Agcilgfortradereceivables-outstflndingasatJll\'l.rrch202.lisrsfoll0\s:

As at
3l N,hrch 2025

As at
-11 l\lrrch 2024

5 7.00

57.00

Name ofthe partuer
As at.ll Nlarch 2025 As at J I l\larch 202J

oof
share

Capital
Bnhnces

Yo of share
Capital
Billances

Modi & Modi Realtv Hvdeubad
Balram Reddy
Modi Housins Private Limitcd

60.00%
35.00%
5.00%

31.95
2.3 8

(7.27)

60.00%,
35.00%
5.00%

78.8 7

('t.21)

Particulars Not due Less 6 trontlrs l-2 years l-3 year
than 6 -l yexr
months

l\'lore than 3

yeam 'l0trl

5?.00

1'otnl 57.00

untants
rtefed

t)

2.J8 2.J3

- 5?.00

U ndisp uted Trade receiwbles
- considered good 57.00
- considered doubtful
Dispuled Tr le Rcceil\tbles
- considered good
- considered doubttll



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limited
CIN: U70l00TG202OPTCl384?5
Notes forming part offinancial statements as at and for the year ended 3l March 2025
(All amounts expressed i lndian rupccs Lakhs, except slarc dAta or as otherwise state(l)

l3 Crsh and bank balancts
As at

3l March 2025

,{s nt
f,l l\'larch 202{

Cash atrd cash equivalents
Cash in hand

Balances with the bar Ls

- In crrrrent accounts

Othcr bank balances
.r.{0 1.62

l4 Other current assets

C)ther receivable

0.01

3.39

0.01

1.62

As nt
3l trIarch 2025

As rt
ll N'larch 202J

0.10

l5 Revenue from operations

Salc of Villas

l6 Other income

Share ofProfit on Investment
Expenses incurred refunded back

l7 Changes io lnventories

Villas at Rampally
Opening balance
Less: Cost ofvillas sold during the year

Closing belance
Villas at Miryahguda
Openilg balnnce

Add: Purchases nrade incured during the year

Closing balatrce

Changes iu lrrventories

l8 Firnnce costs

I terest expcnse
- On borro'wings
- 0n Tl)S

47.00 61.23

{7.00

Yrar encled

.ll i\llrth 2025

Year ended

3l llnlch 202J

Year ertded

3l NIarch 2025
Year ended

3l March 2024

6.r3 5.13

0. t0
6.13 5.tJ

Yrar cntlcrl
3l l\lalch 2025

\ eilr'crrdrd
.ll Unr(h 202{

343.35
(3 8. l5)

305.20
(38. r s)
261.05 305.20

49.05

,19.05 19.05

Year ended

Jl NIirch 2025
Year ended

3l N'larch 202,1

10.39

0.02

7.59

0.03

10.{l n2

0.10

67.23

49.0i

38.15 (10.90)



Modi & Modi Rcalty HyderaLrad Private Limitcd
CIN: U70100TG2020PTC138475
Notes forming part offitrancial statements as at rnd for the year ended 3l l\farch 2025
(All amounts expressed io Indian rupees Lrkhs, except share data or as otherwise stated)

l9 sharc of Loss otr lnvestments 
Yearended Year ended

3l March 2025 3l March 2024

Share ofloss liom in|estnrcnt ilr tlrlns 58.'t'7 i8.74
5tt-77 ll.t.?J

Ycar orrdetl Year cndctl
3l Nlarch 2025 3l lvl{rch 202420 Other expelses

Advertisement and Sales promotion expense
Audito/s remuneralion (Refer note 21)

Commission and Brokerage
Lcgal and Professional charges
Other expenditure
Postage. Printing and stationcr,\'
Rent
Rates and taxes

Subscription and Membership Fees

2l Auditor's renruneration

As Auditors:
Statutory audit fees (including taxes)

1.15

0.83

t.20
1.03
0.07
0.()j
t.28
0.06

0.25

0.75

0.65

0)2
0.i l
0.08

5.65 2.15

Year ende<l

3l Mrrch 2025
Year endcd

ll N'l,trth l0l-l

0.83 0.75

0 75

o
o
.o

4

t



Modi & trIodi Rcalty Hydembad Private Limifed
CIN: U70l00TG2020PTC 1.18.175

Notes forming part of financial statcDlents as nt nnd for thc ) exr erdtd J I i\larch 2025
(All amouDts cxprcssed ilr lndian rupecs Lakhs' except sharc data or ns otherwisc stntcd)

23 Capital atrd Other Commitmerts:
a, CapitalCommitments:

Estimated amount ofcontracts remaining to be executed on Capital Accourlt (Nel ol Capital Adva[ce)

areNil (Previous Year: Rs. Nil)

24 Othcr St.tutory lDformation
i. The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or

pending against the Group for holding aoy Benami property.

ii. The Company does not have any traosactions with companies struck off
iii, The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be regislered tvith ROC

beyond the statutory pcriod.

iv. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Viftual CurrcDcy during the llnarrcial

year.

v. The Company has not been declared wilful det'aulter by any bank or financial institution or

govemment or any government authority.
vi. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ics),

including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invcst in other persons or entities idenlilied in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any gualantce, security or the like to or on behalfoithe Ultimalc Beneficinrics

vii. The Company has not received any t'und liom any person(s) or entity(ies), including lbreign cDtities

(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Croup

shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding Party (Ultimat€ Beneficiaries) or
(b) prcvide any guamntee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

viii. The Company does not have any such transaction r\hich is not recordccl in lhe books ol account llral

has been surrendercd or disclosed as incorne during the;'ear in thc tux asscssrnenls undcr Lhe lrcorne

Tax Act, 196l (such as. sealch or survey or.uy other relevart provisions ol'the lllconlc'l'a\ Act,

196 r.)
ix. The Company does not have any Propefty, Plant and Equipment during the year ended 3lst March

2025.

x. The Company does not havc any lmmovable property during the year ended 3 lst

22 Cootingent Lirbilities:
Claims against the Company not acknotlledged as debt: Rs. Nil (Previous Year: Rs. Nil)



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Li ited

CIN: U70l00TG2020PTClJ8475
Notes forming part offinancial statements as at and for the yetr entled Jl N{arch 2025

(All aurounts expresscd in Indian rup€es Lakhs, exccDt shar€ (llta or ns otherwisc strte(l)

Earnings per share
The amount considered in ascertaining the company's earnings per share constitutes thc net profit after

tax. The number of Shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of

shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted eamings per share

comprises the weighted average number of sharcs considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also

the weighted average numbcr of shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutivs

25

Prrliculars
Ycnr cnded

3l NIrrcl 2025

\'cilr endcd

-]l Nlrrch 2024

Net prulit cltcr ta\ rllrihutJblc lu cquil) shareholders (in Rs.)

Weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the year -

Basic
Weighted average number of shares outstanding dudng the year -

Diluted
Basic eamings per sharc (Rs.)

Diluted earnings pcr sharc (in Rs.)

Nominal value per equit)- share (in I{s.)

(58.26,s7i)
I 1,83,464

I1,83,464

(4.92)
(4.92)

10

( r9.31.741)
I 1,83,464

I1,83,464

( r.63)
( 1.63)

l0

26 Relat€d party disclosurcs
ln accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 18, 'Related Palty Disclosules' as

specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule ? ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 (as

amended), the names of the related party where control exists/able to exercise significant influence along

with the aggregate transactions and year end balances with them as idcntified and cefiified hy lhe

nranagement are as tbllo\\'s:

a, Nanres of related parties alr(l description of relationship (with \vhom trans^ctiols hn\ e tnlicn plilce) *

Nanre of relatcd partiesDcscripti on of relltionship
Soham Satish Modi (Director)

Ashish Pramod Modi (Director)

Caurang Jayantilal Mody (Director)

Modi & Modi Financial Sen iccs l-[.P

Modi Realty Gagillapur LLP
Modi Realty Oenome Valley LLP
Modi Realty Miryalaguda L[-P
Modi Reahy Pocharam LLP
Modi Realty Vikarabad LLP
NilgiriEstates
Paramount Estatcs

Modi Ventures
Modi & Modi Constructions

Modi l-lousing Private Lirnited
Modi Properties l'rivate Limited

Key nranagement pcrso lel

Entity having control over Company

Entities having significant influence over

the Company

Pannenhip Firms in which ComPanY

has co[trol

€
o
o

*

{



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Priv{te Li rited
CIN: U70100TG2020PTC138475
Notes forming part offinancial statements as at and for the year ended 3l March 2025
(All amounts cxpressed in Indian rupees Lak}s, except share data or as otherwise stated)

DcscriDtion of relrtionshiD N{me of rclated pnfties

Enterpriscs in rvhich Key Managcmcnt
personnel and /or their relatives have

simificant influence

Modi Realty Siddipet LLP
N Square Lif'csciences LLP
Soham Modi HUF
Summit Sales LLP
AVR Gulmohar Wclfare Association

b. TrnnsactioDs with rehted plrdics *

R

a
tr

artered
untaflls o

*

Year cnded
3l Nlarch 2025

Yc:rl rnrlerl
ll i\'larch 2024

Pa11icuhls

Modi & Modi Financial Services LLP
AdYancc Received

Modi & Modi Constructions
Capital contributior (net of drarvings)

Share ofprofit / (loss)

Modi Ventures
Capital contdbution (net oldrarvings)
Share ofprolit / (loss)

Nilgiri f,states
Capital contribution (net of d|arvings)
Share ofprolit / (loss)

ParamouDt Estates
Capital contribution (net of drawings)
Share ofprotit / (loss)

Nlodi Realty Genome Valley LLP
Capital contribution (net of drauings)
Share ofprofit / (loss)

Nlodi Realty Miryalaguda LLP
Capital contribution (net of drarviDgs)

Share of prolit / (loss)

Modi Housing Private Lirrrited
Unsecured Loan taken

lnterest oo Loan

19.48

10.39

(3.00)

2;79

(0.15)

1.69

64.34
(21 .7 t)

(4.3e)
(0.s r)

0.-t0

0.2'7

(2.24)
(17.59)

(18.e0)
(r?.91)

20.00

135.36

7.59

(0.55)
(2.74)

( l.l3)
0.04

j.1.76

(r.33)

(8.10)
2RS

|.10
(0 r4)

279.32
(5.02)

(261.10)
(21.39)

Irlodi Realty Cagillapur LLI'
Capital contribution (net of dm\vings)

Share of prol'it / (loss)



Il{odi & NIodi Realty Hyderabrd Privnte LiDritcd
CIN: U70l00TG2020PTCl38{75
Notcs forming part offinancial st tefients as at and for the ycar ended 3l Nltlch 2025
(AII amouDts erpressed in lndinn rupees Laldrs, except shltre dnta or as otbel.}vise stated)

c. Balances with related pafties (as at year end)

Particulars
Year edded

3l March 2025

Year ended

3l March 2024

Modi Realty Pocharam LLP
Capital contributioD (net of dra\\ings)
Share ol prolit / (loss)

Modi Realty Vikarabad LLP
Capital contribution (net of drawings)
Share ofprofit / (loss)

Modi Realty Siddipet LLP
Reinrbursement rcceivable

AVR Culmohar Welfare Association
Rent & Amcnit) Chargrs

3.83
(0.76)

0.42

1.20

4.25
(3.12)

10.00

t)..12

As at
3l March 2025

As at
31 Nlalch 2024

Particulars

Modi Housing Private Lirnited
Unsccured Loan pa)'ablc

Interest Payable on Loan

NIodi & Modi Constructions
Capital Balancc (nct ofdrauings)

Modi Vcntures
Capital Balancc (net ofdrarvings)

Nilgiri Est:rtes
Capital Balance (net ofdrarvings)

Paramount Estates
Capital Balance (net ofdrarvings)

Modi Realty Cagillapur LLP
Capital Balance (nct of dlarvin-es)

9.0'1

(16.e8)

(81.40)

l.0t

l]l.l6

ll9
9

56

l5

o )Q

( 12.1.03)

5.90

| 21.23

16.22
6.83

artered
untants

Modi Properties Privatc Linrited
Accouuts and Management Services

N Square Lifesciences LLP
Advance for purchase ofmaterial

9.54
t.6l

0.13

0.10

(r8.53)



Modi & Modi Realty Hyderabad Private Limited
CIN: U70l00TG2020PTCl38:t7s
Notes fornring part offinxncial statcments as tt and for the yc r ende(l .3l NItr.ch 2025
(All amounts exprcssed ill Indinn rupccs Lnkhs! except share dlt.r or as othertvisc stite(l)

27 Regroupiny' Reclassificatiol:
Previous year's figures havc been regrouped / reclassit'jed rvhclcvel necessary to corrcspold $i1l] the
cuuent vcar's classitication / disclosules

Particulars As at
Jl l\larch 2025 f,l NIarcl 2024

Modi Realty Genome Valley LLP
Capital Balance (net ofdrawings)

Modi Realty Miryalaguda LLP
Capital Balancc (net ofd|a$ ings)

1\'lodi Realty Pocharam LLP
Capital Balance (net ofdlauings)

Modi Realty Vikarabad LLP
Capital Balance (net ofdrawings)

IUodi Realty Siddipct LLP
Ileimbursemcnt Receivablc

Modi Properties Private Liruited
Sundry creditors

746.61

117.08

r93.43

81.95

0.02

'166.44

lI I.92

t31.29

1t. l0

o
o
,o

4I

*

7 8.87



IlIodi & Nlodi Realty llydcrabad Prilatc Linrilcd
CIN: U70100TC2020P'| Cll8175
Not€s forming part oflinancial siatcnrcnts as at aDd lbr the ycnr r:ndcd f,l l\Iarch 2025
(All amoullts €xpresscd in Indian rupccs Lakhs, cxccpt share data or as othcnvisc statcd)

28 Additional Rcgu lator)' I n lbrnu tio
- liutior

I l.ong-Term borrowings + Short-Term borrowings
2Net 

Drofit after tax + Non-cash oDerating exDenses Iike deDrcciation + Intercst
I 

Term loan lDterest + Prillcipal repaynrents
I Tangible Networth + Total Det t + Dcfrrrcd tar liability

As per our rcport ofeveo date aftachcd
ForA SAgarwal & Co. l'or nnd on bchalfofthe lJoard ofDircctors of
Chtrtcrcd Accoun i&]l al I dcrabad Private Limiled
Iirm llegistra s

\x/
Ashish Aga
Parlner
Membe rsh ip No
llDlN: 25222lt6lBM wx5627
Place : Hydernbrd
Date : 29 September 2025

So hu rutish \l0di
ctor

DIN: 00i225-16

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 29 September 2025

Director
DIN:00522520

(iu Ig ilr l \

l{:rtios Dr 0r|riIirtor l.\
21t21-25

tiY
2023-24

Vrrirnce Iltnroo

Currert Ratio
(in times)

Totdl cure t

assets

Total curent
liabilities

1.73 2.29 -24v" Not applicable

DebGEquity Ratio
(in times)

Total Debtr Total equity 0.lLr 0.12 -17% Not applicable

Debt Service

Co\,erage Ratio
(iD tirDes)

Earling for

Debt Scr\iccl
Debt servicel (5.03) (0.9r) 152% Prirlilary due to

ilcrease in loss

ReturD on Equity
Ratio (in 7.)

Prolit lbr the
year less

Average total
equity

(0.04) (0.0r)

lnvertory turnover
ratio (in times)

Cost ofgoods
sold

Average

inventory

0.1I 0.1 I Not applicable

Trade Receivables

turnover ratio
(ir times)

Revenue from
operatiolls

Average hade

receivables

1.65 2.36 -30v" Primilary due to
dccrcase iu srles

Tradc payables

turnover ratio
(in tines)

Cost ofgoods
sold

Avcrage trade

payables

1..1i - I000/" l'rinrilarl duc to

declease ir trade
payables

Net capital turnover
ratio (in times)

Revenue li"om

operatiols
Average working
capjtal

0.35 0.29 20% Not applicable

Net profit ratio
(in %)

Profit for the
vcilr

Revenue liom
oLrelitlions

(1.24) (0.29) 331%

Return on Capital

employed (in 7o)

Protit bclire
tax and ti ance

Capital

enrnlolco

(0.03) (0.00) 66r')i,

Return on

iDvcstment
(in %)

Income
geDeratcd li'onr
iflvested llnds

Averuge invested
firnds il treasury
iflvestnents

(0.01) (r.0i) Primilarv due to

lllcl'easc lll
inveslmeDts

Chartered
ntarrts

C)

a
9P

o

Place

Date

L

l'rimilary due to
ircreasc in Ioss


